
Unrestricted 

EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 

1 If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately. 
2 Follow the green signs. 
3 Use the stairs not the lifts. 
4 Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 
 

 
If you require further information, please contact: Katharine Simpson 
Telephone: 01344 352308 
Email: katharine.simpson@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
Published: 25 August 2015 

  

 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

Health and Wellbeing Board 
Thursday 3 September 2015, 2.00 pm 
Council Chamber, Fourth Floor, Easthampstead House, Bracknell 

To: The Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
Councillor Dale Birch, Executive Member for Adult Services, Health & Housing (Chairman) 
Dr Tong, Bracknell & Ascot Clinical Commissioning Group (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Dr Gareth Barnard, Executive Member for Children & Young People 
Philip Cook, Involve 
Alex Gild, Berkshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust 
Dr Janette Karklins, Director of Children, Young People & Learning, Bracknell Forest Council 
John Nawrockyi, Director of Adult Social Care, Health & Housing 
Rachel Pearce, South Central Sub Region NHS 
Mary Purnell, Bracknell & Ascot Clinical Commissioning Group 
Lise Llewellyn, Director of Public Health 
Mark Sanders, Healthwatch 
Fidelma Tinneny, Berkshire Care Association 
Linda Wells, Bracknell Forest Homes 
Timothy Wheadon, Chief Executive, Bracknell Forest Council 

ALISON SANDERS 
Director of Corporate Services 
 



 

 

Health and Wellbeing Board 
Thursday 3 September 2015, 2.00 pm 
Council Chamber, Fourth Floor, Easthampstead House, 
Bracknell 

Sound recording, photographing, filming and use of social media at meetings which are 
held in public are permitted.  Those wishing to record proceedings at a meeting are 
however advised to contact the Democratic Services Officer named as the contact for 
further information on the front of this agenda as early as possible before the start of 
the meeting so that any special arrangements can be made. 

AGENDA 
 Page No 

1. Apologies   

 To receive apologies for absence and to note the attendance of any 
substitute members. 
 

 

2. Declarations of Interest   

 Any Member with a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or an Affected 
Interest in a matter should withdraw from the meeting when the matter 
is under consideration and should notify the Democratic Services 
Officer in attendance that they are withdrawing as they have such an 
interest. If the Interest is not entered on the register of Members 
interests the Monitoring Officer must be notified of the interest within 28 
days. 
 

 

3. Urgent Items of Business   

 Any other items which the chairman decides are urgent. 
 

 

4. Minutes from Previous Meeting   

 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Board 
held on 4 June 2015. 
 

1 - 6 

5. Matters Arising   

6. Public Participation   

 QUESTIONS: If you would like to ask a question you must arrive 15 
minutes before the start of the meeting to provide the clerk with your 
name, address and the question you would like to ask. Alternatively, 
you can provide this information by email to the clerk Katharine 
Simpson (katharine.simpson@bracknell-forest.gov.uk) at least two 
hours ahead of a meeting. The subject matter of questions must relate 
to an item on the Board’s agenda for that particular meeting. The clerk 
can provide advice on this where requested. 
 
PETITIONS: A petition must be submitted a minimum of seven working 
days before a Board meeting and must be given to the clerk by this 
deadline. There must be a minimum of ten signatures for a petition to 
 

 

mailto:katharine.simposn@bracknell-forest.gov.uk


 

 

be submitted to the Board. The subject matter of a petition must be 
about something that is within the Board’s responsibilities. This 
includes matters of interest to the Board as a key stakeholder in 
improving the health and wellbeing of communities 
 

7. Actions taken between meetings   

 Board members are asked to report any action taken between 
meetings of interest to the Board. 
 

 

8. Mental Health Support for Young People   

 To receive a presentation from Xenzone, the organisation providing 
Bracknell Forest’s online mental health support for young people, to 
learn about their experiences of working in Bracknell Forest and to 
provide the Health and Wellbeing Board with an opportunity to help 
shape the service’s development 
 

 

9. Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service Transformation Plan   

 To receive an update on the transformation of the Child and Adolescent 
Mental Health Service (CAMHS) 
 

 

10. Joint Working Arrangements: NHS and Local Authority   

 To consider a report setting out the key areas of joint working in 
Bracknell Forest between the Local Authority and the NHS.  Exploring 
the concept of effective joint working and proposing a framework for 
future evaluation 
 

7 - 18 

11. Healthwatch Bracknell Forest Annual Report   

 To receive and comment on Healthwatch Bracknell Forest’s Annual 
Report for 2014/15.  
 

19 - 40 

12. Forward Plan   

 Board members are asked to make any additions or amendments to 
the Board’s Forward Plan as necessary. 
 

41 - 42 

 





Unrestricted 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
4 JUNE 2015 
2.00  - 4.20 PM 

  

 
Present: 
Councillor Dr Gareth Barnard, Executive Member for Children & Young People 
Councillor Dale Birch, Executive Member for Adult Services, Health & Housing 
John Nawrockyi, Director of Adult Social Care, Health & Housing 
Mary Purnell, Bracknell & Ascot Clinical Commissioning Group 
Lise Llewellyn, Director of Public Health 
Timothy Wheadon, Chief Executive, Bracknell Forest Council 
 
Also Present: 
Alex Tilley, Bracknell and Ascot Clinical Commissioning Group 
Anshu Varma, Berkshire East Clinical Commissioning Group Federation 
 
In Attendance: 
Mira Haynes, Chief Officer: Older People and Long Term Conditions 
Zoë Johnstone, Chief officer: Adults and Joint Commissioning 
Christine McInnes, Chief Officer: Learning and Achievement 
Dr Lisa McNally, Public Health 
 
Apologies for absence were received from: 
Dr Janette Karklins, Director of Children, Young People and Learning 
Mark Sanders, Healthwatch 
Dr William Tong, Bracknell and Ascot Clinical commissioning Group 
 

1. Election of Chairman  

RESOLVED that Councillor Birch be elected Chairman of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board for the 2015/16 Municipal Year. 

2. Appointment of Vice-Chairman  

RESOLVED that Dr William Tong be appointed Vice-Chairman of the Health and 
Wellbeing board for the 2015/16 Municipal Year. 

3. Declarations of Interest  

There were no declarations of interest. 

4. Urgent Items of Business  

There were no urgent items of business. 

5. Minutes from Previous Meeting  

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board held 
on 5 March 2015 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 



6. Matters Arising  

There were no matters arising. 

7. Public Participation  

No submissions had been received under the terms of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board’s public participation scheme. 

8. Actions taken between meetings  

It was noted that no substantive actions had taken place since the Board’s last 
meeting.  

9. Xenzone Presentation  

It was noted that due to illness the presenter of this item was unable to attend the 
meeting.  It was agreed that the presentation would be deferred to a future meeting. 
 
It was reported that the Kooth programme had been launched in April 2015 and 
provided free anonymous counselling and support to young people experiencing 
emotional problems.  Resources were also available for parents and teachers. Since 
the programme’s Bracknell Forest launch in April 2015 support had been provided to 
17 young people.   
 
To ensure that the Kooth service was integrated into the services that were already 
available in the area an Integration and Participation Scheme Officer had been 
appointed  and they were working with GP surgeries, the Child and Adolescent 
Mental Health Service (CAMHS) and other agencies that worked with young people 
including Youth Services and Youthline. Kooth was also able to take on clients that 
had been stepped-down from CAHMS services and this would mean that young 
people would now be able to receive ongoing support.  A move that was hoped would 
reduce the number re-referrals being made to CAHMS. 
 
In order to ascertain whether the service was having an impact a range of 
quantitative data was being collated and analysed including psycho-social indicators, 
impacts on other services and displacement activity e.g. the number of referrals and 
re-referrals made to CAHMS and the size of CAHMS waiting lists.  Work was also  
taking place with a small group of young carers to develop qualitative data gathering  
about the service’s impacts.  It was suggested that Head Teachers and School 
Safeguarding Leads be asked to provide feedback on their views of the impact that 
the service was having on pupils. 
 
This data would be reported on a quarterly basis and it was agreed that the regular 
service monitoring reports would be circulated to the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

10. Co-commissioning of Primary Care and the Implications for the Health and 
Wellbeing Board  

Alex Tilley, NHS England, gave an update in respect of the work taking place to 
develop co-commissioning of primary care and the development of appropriate 
governance arrangements to take this work forward. 
 
It was reported that the Bracknell and Ascot Clinical Commissioning Group’s (CCG) 
application to enter into co-commissioning arrangements ‘Better Futures for All’ had 
been approved by the National Panel and work to develop appropriate governance 
arrangements was underway.  A communications plan had been developed and the 



CCG’s website would be regularly updated with developments and a newsletter 
would also be produced. 
 
It was proposed to base the programme’s governance arrangements on NHS 
England’s model terms of reference for joint commissioning arrangements.  It was 
noted that the model terms of reference stipulated that whilst membership of the Joint 
Committee responsible for the work would include Health and Wellbeing Boards and 
Healthwatch organisations voting rights would be restricted to those representing 
NHS England and the CCG and it was questioned why local authorities were being 
expected to contribute to the resourcing of co-commissioned work when they were 
being denied voting rights. 
 
The Board’s concerns were acknowledged.  However the National Health Service Act 
2006 had restricted the delegation of primary care commissioning to NHS agencies 
and that legal advice was that all voting arrangements had to be balanced between 
the CCG and NHS England. Notwithstanding this it was stressed that other agencies 
would be able to have an input into any discussions by the Joint Committee and that 
any co-commissioning decisions should be based on the direction of travel set out in 
an area’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  In addition to the CCG’s policies on the 
declaration of any conflicts of interest the Joint Committee would also be bound by its 
own policies drawn up for the registration of interests and the declaration of any 
conflicts of interest. 
 
In order to inform the co-commissioning process a stakeholder event had been held 
in January 2014 and this had then been followed by a programme of consultation 
exercises with patient engagement groups, Healthwatch and public meetings.  The 
outcomes had then been used to inform the application that had been made to the 
Prime Minister’s Challenge Fund. 

11. Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services Review Update  

The Board received a report providing an update on the progress made to develop a 
joint action plan to support children and young people’s mental health in Bracknell 
Forest. 
 
It was reported that the joint action plan focused on a number of key areas including: 
 

 Improving emotional health and wellbeing in educational settings 

 Promoting resilience, prevention and early intervention 

 Improving access across all service providers to effective support at all levels 

 Providing timely care for the most vulnerable 

 Addressing perinatal mental health in new mothers 

 Workforce development 
 

It was intended that the Action Plan would act as a working document that would be 
updated regularly as the two to three year programme was progressed. 
 
The Board questioned what actions were being taken to reduce the waiting list for 
those who required treatment at  Tiers 3 and 4 and expressed the view that partners 
should be working towards a guaranteed waiting time of less than eight weeks. In 
response, Berkshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust confirmed to the Board that in 
2015/16 they would be investing an extra £2.5million in Tier 3 services (including the 
recruitment of additional nurses) and made a commitment to ensuring that as a 
minimum waiting times would be reduced to 12 weeks by March 2016. It was also 
noted that work was taking place to improve access to services.  It was hoped that 



this allied to the work taking place across tiers 1 and 2 would help stabilise the 
position at Tier 3.  
 
RESOLVED that: 
 

i. The latest new national guidance on CAMHS be noted 
ii. The joint (draft) action plan be endorsed 
iii. An annual update on progress made against the joint action plan be received 

by the Health and Wellbeing Board 

12. Bracknell and Ascot Clinical Commissioning Group Operational Plan  

The Health and Wellbeing Board considered a report setting out Bracknell and Ascot 
Clinical Commissioning Group’s (CCG) Operating Plan for 2015/16.  It was noted that 
the Plan was covered the second year of a two year plan and set out a summary of 
the aims and intentions of the CCG.  The full plan was scheduled for approval by the 
CCG’s Governing Body in July 2015. 
 
The Board was pleased to note that improving mental health had been added to the 
Operating Plan as an additional priority. 
 
An overview was given of the work that was taking place to develop Collaborative 
Care for Older Citizens a new and transformed model of care for older people 
through the development of an evidence based pathway that would provide an 
increase in the capacity and effectiveness of out of hospital care and deliver financial 
sustainability for the health and social care economy.  The programme involved 
Bracknell and Ascot CCG, Windsor Ascot and Maidenhead CCG, Slough CCG and 
the Chiltern (Southern Locality) CCG.  The programme had included a significant 
volume of consultation with service providers as well as patient groups and the 
general public and work was now taking place to develop and refine the proposed 
new model of care and explore how it might link with programmes that were already 
operational for example  Ageing Well and the Better Care Fund work.  
 
The Board noted the ambitious nature of the Collaborative Care programme  and 
expressed concern the programme might divert funding and resources away from 
existing local programmes.   It was also questioned why the programme was required 
as it was felt that there was a level of integration already. 
 
The integration and co-commissioning of services that had already taken place locally 
was acknowledged however it was stressed that acute and community services were 
not particularly well integrated currently and when future service provision was 
explored it had been found that gaps in services would appear and older people 
would not get the service they needed. 
 
The Board questioned why the Collaborative Care programme did not cover 
Wokingham or Surrey Heath and it was noted that the programme currently covered 
only the area covered by the Frimley Hospital’s Trust. 
 
It was noted that although the business case for the programme would not be ready 
for approval until November 2015 there were a number of actions which could be put 
into place at a local level more quickly for example developing the falls programme 
and the development of a frailty index, similar to one in use in Yorkshire and the 
Humber, which could be linked into GP data systems and healthcare records so that 
frailty could be picked up at an earlier stage and appropriate intervention and 
prevention measures put in place to prevent a problem escalating. 



13. Infrastructure Group Update  

The Board received a report providing an update on the work of the Health 
Infrastructure Task and Finish Group which had been set up at the request of the 
Board to look at the projected housing growth and demographic changes within the 
Borough and the impacts that these might have on health infrastructure in future 
years. 
 
It was stressed that capacity was not just an issue in the areas earmarked for larger 
developments and that it was important that the group maintained an overview of the 
situation in established areas.   
 
It was agreed that the Chairman of the Health and Wellbeing Board would join the 
Group and that an invitation to join the Group would be extended to the Chairman of 
Wokingham Borough Council’s Health and Wellbeing Board to ensure that cross 
border issues were managed. 
 
RESOLVED that the Health and Wellbeing Board: 
 

i. That support the development of primary care in the areas of greatest 
housing growth (Warfield and Crowthorne). These centres can then be 
used as a focus for activities to promote health and wellbeing in the 
communities and play a vital role, particularly in the preventative aspects 
of health and wellbeing. 

ii. That the concept of focussing on the identified ‘hotspots’ is agreed as a 
principle by which the Health and Wellbeing Board should focus its 
combined energy on addressing the changing needs of the population. 

iii. That the changing needs of the Crowthorne population are the first area 
for the task and finish group to focus on in some detail, to address the 
impact of the housing growth and the complexity arising from the close 
proximity of the Wokingham border. This will be achieved through close 
working with key stakeholders including Wokingham Clinical 
Commissioning Group, Wokingham Borough Council (initially via the 
public health consultant), local affected GP practices  and Crowthorne 
Parish Council, as well as the developer. 

iv. That further work is done, taking into account the Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment and Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy, and national 
exemplars, to investigate the opportunities the redeveloped town centre 
presents in terms of promoting health and wellbeing, and delivering health 
interventions. This will include understanding and influencing the possible 
redevelopment of Skimped Hill Health Centre. 

v. That the Health and Wellbeing Board assumes a role in influencing the 
future development of services at the Royal Berkshire Hospital Bracknell 
Healthspace such that these are complementary to other health 
infrastructure solutions in the Borough, and reflect the changing needs of 
the population 

14. Health and Wellbeing Board Review Implementation Update  

The Board received and noted a report setting out the progress made to implement 
the changes agreed following a review of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s 
structures. 

15. Forward Plan  

The Board noted the items on the Forward Plan. 

CHAIRMAN 





Unrestricted 
 

TO: HEALTH AND WELL BEING BOARD 
3 SEPTEMBER 2015 

  
 

JOINT WORKING: LOCAL AUTHORITY AND NHS 
Interim Director of Adult Social Care, Health and Housing 

Strategic Director of Public Health 
 

 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To set out the key areas of joint working in Bracknell Forest between the Local Authority 

and the NHS. 
             

1.2 To examine the concept of effective joint working and propose a framework for future 
evaluation.           
   

 
2 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Health and Well Being Board: 
 
2.1 NOTE  the key areas of joint working in Bracknell Forest between the Local 

Authority and the NHS and suggest additions. 
  

2.2 AGREE the proposed approach to future evaluation of how effective joined up 
working between the council and NHS actually is. 

 
 
3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 Good outcomes in relation to health and well-being depend to a large extent on how 

effectively the local authority, NHS and other agencies collaborate. 
 
3.2 It is therefore important to have an overview of the key areas of joint working and to 

establish a framework for evaluating how well they are actually ‘joined up’ from both a 
system and end use perspective. 

 
 
4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
4.1 None 
 
 
5 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
5.1 A key aim of the Bracknell Forest Health & Well-Being Board is to ensure an integrated 

and ‘joined up’ programme of work between The Council, NHS and other local agencies 
concerned with health and social care.     

 
5.2 This aim is underpinned by the Joint Health & Well-Being Strategy which has the principal 

of “Seamless Health” at its core.  
 

5.3 This principal is a fundamental one.  While many complaints about Health & Social Care 
may in part be driven by the quality of services, they are just as often about the gaps 



Unrestricted 
 

between those services.  Long waiting lists, broken referral chains and poor 
communication between services can just as easily leave people distressed or vulnerable 
as poor quality care itself.   
 

5.4 In addition, an inadequately joined up service system rarely make the best use of 
available resources.  Duplicated work, inconsistent approaches and poor communication 
between agencies inevitably wastes money as well as time. 

 
5.5 There are varied ways of examining whether “seamless” or “joined up” work is being 

achieved. These, in turn, depend on the perspective from which one approaches the 
issue, and how one actually defines “joined up”: 
 
5.5.1 A “system based” perspective will look at whether agencies, strategies and 

decision-making processes are “joined up”.  Key questions may include “Are our 
funding streams aligned? Do we have joint committees in place? Are our 
commissioning priorities jointly agreed?” 
 

5.5.2 An “end use” perspective, however, will focus on the experience of those 
accessing services. Questions are framed from a resident’s point of view: “Did I get 
all the information I needed in one place?   How many different professionals did I 
need to see?  Did I have to repeat my ‘story’ each time?  Did I fall though any 
‘gaps’ between services?  Did the whole process feel ‘joined up’?” 

 
5.6 It is possible to achieve a “joined up” approach as defined from a system-based 

perspective while still failing to achieve it from an end-use perspective.  Therefore, areas 
of joint working need to be examined from both view-points. 

 
5.7 Appendix A sets out some areas in which the work of Bracknell Forest Council is 

integrated with that of NHS partners.  The list is by no means exclusive but does seek to 
highlight some important elements of joint working.  Key areas of joint working include: 
 
5.7.1 Intermediate Care and Reablement Services are provided to people either after 

leaving hospital or when they are at risk of being admitted to hospital. The aim is to 
help people be as independent as possible and avoid going into hospital or long 
term residential care unnecessarily. In Bracknell Forest they are jointly funded 
through a Section 75 Pooled Budget Agreement and run in a partnership between 
Local Government and the NHS.  This integrated service is hosted by Bracknell 
Forest Council with Berkshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust providing 
supplementary community nursing.  Work to develop intermediate care services is 
included within the Bracknell Forest Better Care Fund programme. 

 
5.7.2 Integrated Care Teams aim to bring well coordinated care from a range of 

professionals and agencies to people with a Long Term Condition (LTC) and / or 
the frail elderly.  The teams seek to support people to effectively manage their 
condition(s) and improve their outcomes and experience.  The teams offer an 
equitable service for all Bracknell and Ascot CCG patients diagnosed with a LTC.  
People who are having difficulty in managing their conditions are referred to the 
team for a short period of time in order to help them stabilise their health. 
Integrated care teams have been in place since February 2013 with the active 
participation of all practices in the CCG, organised in 3 clusters each with a care 
coordinator, matron and access to a range of community based services. In the 
first 12 months over 250 people benefited from a multi-disciplinary team discussion 
and their care plans were shared with all services involved in their care. Further 
development and expansion of integrated care teams are again part of the Better 
Care Fund programme. 



Unrestricted 
 

 
5.1.1 Children’s and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) necessitate effective 

collaboration across a range of agencies and professional groups.  While Bracknell 
Forest Council commissions or provides programmes at a preventative or ‘early 
intervention’ level, the NHS tends to have responsibility for more specialist, 
secondary mental health services. The council, NHS and other partners come 
together within an Emotional Health & Well-Being Group, with the aim of providing 
a whole system approach to commissioning. A recent example of joint working is 
the joint commissioning of online counselling by Public Health and the CCG.  
Further development of children and adolescent mental health work will be driven 
this year by the national CAMHS Transformation Plan from which additional 
funding will be available to improve services and reduce waiting times. 

 
5.1.2 Illness Prevention The council took over responsibility for Public Health in April 

2013 and since then has worked effectively with Bracknell & Ascot CCG to 
improve services such as weight management, health checks, alcohol harm 
reduction and smoking cessation services.  All four of these programmes were 
nominated for national awards in 2015, with the smoking cessation service winning 
the MJ Public Health Partnerships award in June.  The council and CCG 
collaboration has expanded with the development of a new Falls Prevention 
programme which has added community based preventative interventions to the 
more intensive or clinical falls programmes already in existence. 

 
5.8 Effective integrated working may be facilitated through the pooling of budgets and other 

resources.  There is already a limited amount of pooled budgeting across the system in 
Bracknell Forest, most notably within the better Care Fund Programme. 
 

5.9 Further pooling of budgets, including in relation to preventative work, may bring practical 
advantages.  The NW London Integrated Care Group, in their analysis of health and care 
integration, argues that pooled budgets better enable commissioners to "…align providers 
against a common set of outcomes for their population. This should support an 
improvement in the quality of care delivered and a reduction in the duplication of 
functions, which in turn will represent better value for the system. This is because pooling 
budgets makes it easier for providers to deliver the care people need. Instead of having to 
deliver highly specified services targeting narrow outcomes against fragmented budget 
codes, providers can personalise interventions according to the best interests of 
individuals and respond much faster when needs change.”1 
 

5.10 The examples of joint working given above, and set out in Appendix A, examine 
integration largely from a ‘system-based’ perspective.  An important second step will be to 
examine this integration from an ‘end-use’ perspective to see if it really is “joined up” or 
“seamless” as it can be – rather than simply appearing so on paper. 

 
5.11 This second step will require the analysis of information from a range of sources, including 

the residents using services (as well as their family and carers) and the professionals 
delivering the services.  In addition, secondary information such as average waiting times, 
referral data or delayed discharge rates will also offer valuable insight. Collaboration with 
Healthwatch and other agencies able to represent the views of residents will be crucial. 
 

5.12 This work need not be time consuming or complex, as it involved the collation of 
information from known sources and existing datasets.  A framework is proposed in 

                                                
1
 North West London Integrated Care (2015) What do we Want to Achieve by Pooling Budgets? 

http://integration.healthiernorthwestlondon.nhs.uk/ 

http://integration.healthiernorthwestlondon.nhs.uk/


Unrestricted 
 

Appendix B for any future evaluation of how well joined up collaborative work streams 
actually are. 
 

5.13 Perfect integration will never be possible.  Variation in need necessitates variation in the 
system, and a stepped model of care with some degree of specialisation and separation is 
inevitable.  However, some gaps in care or support will be unnecessary, and by bringing 
them to light we can seek to eliminate them not just in the system, but also from the real 
life experience of our relatives. 
 
 

6 ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS 
 

Borough Solicitor 
 

6.1 No significant legal issues arise from the matters discussed in this report 
 

 
Borough Treasurer 
 

6.2 There are no direct financial implications within this report for the Council. 
 

 
Equalities Impact Assessment 
 

6.3 Following agreement of the proposed work, each work stream will be subject to a equality 
impact assessment.  
 
Strategic Risk Management Issues  
 

6.4 None 
 
 
7 CONSULTATION 
 
 Principal Groups Consulted 
 
7.1 The work described within this paper is based upon key strategic drivers such as the 

Health & Well-Being Strategy.   These in turn were based on extensive consultation with 
relevant agencies and community groups.  This paper is written for the purposes of 
consulting colleagues and key partners. 

  
Method of Consultation 

 
7.2 Consultation on the key drivers mentioned above took the form of meetings, public events 

and surveys. 
  

Representations Received 
 
7.3 None 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
Appendix A:  Joint Working in Bracknell Forest between the Local Authority and NHS. 
Appendix B:  Framework for the evaluation of joint working. 



Unrestricted 
 

 
 
Contact for further information 
 
Lisa McNally, Adult Social Care, Health and Housing – 01344 355214 
lisa.mcnally@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
John Nawrocki, Adult Social Care, Health and Housing – 01344 351458 
john.nawrockyi@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 

mailto:lisa.mcnally@bracknell-forest.gov.uk
mailto:john.nawrockyi@bracknell-forest.gov.uk


Unrestricted 
 

Appendix A:   
 

Areas of Joint Working in Bracknell Forest between 
the Local Authority and NHS 
 
Key to agencies:  
ASC - Adult Social Care, BA CCG - Bracknell & Ascot Clinical Commissioning Group, 
BHFT – Berkshire Healthcare Foundation Trust, CYP&L – Children, Young People & Learning, 
NHS E – NHS England, PC – Primary Care, PH – Public Health 
 
NB: The list below is not exhaustive.  Rather it represents a starting point or further discussion and others 
areas of joint working may be subsequently added to the list. 
 

Workstream Agencies Notes 

 
Integrated Care Teams 
 

 
ASC 
BA CCG 
BHFT 
Primary Care 
 

 
Coordinated care from a range of 
professionals and agencies to people with a 
Long Term Condition and / or the frail 
elderly.  Organised in 3 clusters each with a 
care coordinator, matron and access to a 
range of community based services. Further 
development underway through Better 
Care Fund programme 
 

 
Intermediate Care 
 
 

 
ASC 
BA CCG 
BHFT 
Primary Care 
 

 
Care for people either after leaving hospital 
or when they are at risk of being admitted 
to hospital. The aim is to help people be as 
independent as possible and avoid going 
into hospital or long term residential care 
unnecessarily. In Bracknell Forest they are 
jointly funded through a Section 75 Pooled 
Budget Agreement. Further development 
underway through Better Care Fund 
programme. 
 

 
Mental Health - Children 

 
PH 
CYP&L 
Primary Care 
BHFT 
NHS E 
 

 
Overseen by Emotional Health & Well-Being 
Group made up of key partners.  Referral 
pathway to and from Online Counselling 
Service with both Primary Care and BHFT 
CAMHS services.  Specialist CAMHS services 
provided by BHFT.  Under review as part of 
national CAMHS Transformation Plan 
(assured by NHS England). 
 
 
 



Unrestricted 
 

 

 
Mental Health - Adults 

 
ASC 
BA CCG 
Primary Care 
BHFT 
PH 
 

 
Community Mental Health Teams staffed by 
both BHFT and ASC staff provide secondary 
care services.  Improving Access to 
Psychological Therapies (IAPT) provided by 
BHFT and linked with primary Care.  
Prevention supported by rreferral pathway 
into Public Health commissioned 
Befriending Service from Primary Care.    
 

 
Services for People with  
Learning Disabilities 
 
 

 
ASC 
C&YP 
Primary Care 

 
The multidisciplinary Community Team for 
People with Learning Disabilities (CTPLD) 
works closely with other agencies including 
statutory, voluntary and private 
organisations to provide information and 
support to adults with a learning disability 
and their carers.  The Children’s Specialist 
Support Team provides support for young 
people with disabilities. Joint work focuses 
on helping young people manage the 
transition to adulthood. 
 

 
Services for People with  
Autistic Spectrum Disorder 
 

 
ASC 
C&YP 
Primary Care 

 
The Community Team for People with ASD 
(CTPASD) provide information and support 
for people with Autistic Spectrum Disorder 
(ASD), including Asperger Syndrome. Joint 
work focuses on helping young people 
manage the transition to adulthood. 
 

 
Smoking Cessation 

 
PH 
Primary Care 
BHFT 
BA CCG 

 
Referrals pathway into quit support service 
from Primary Care and NHS including 
tailored service for key groups (eg: BHFT 
mental health services, maternity services) 
 

 
Weight Management 
 

 
PH 
Primary Care 
BA CCG 
 

 
Referral pathway into weight management 
service from Primary Care.  Includes co-
funded programme with CCG on pre-
diabetes intervention. 
 

 
Falls Prevention 
 

 
PH 
ASC 
Primary Care 
BA CCG 
 

 
Referral pathway to and from Falls Free 4 
Life service and both Primary Care and the 
RACC (Urgent Care Centre) . More intensive 
and Clinical Support provided via the 
Community Response and Reablement 
Team and Rapid Access Community Clinic 



Unrestricted 
 

commissioned and provided by the NHS. 
 

 
Sexual Health 

 
PH 
Primary Care 
BHFT 
Various NHS Providers 
 

 
Primary Care and BHFT / RBH 
commissioned by PH to provide sexual 
health services.  Includes specialist 
outreach service provided by BHFT. Out of 
area NHS services also commissioned. 
 

 
Substance Misuse 

 
PH 
ASC 
Primary Care 
Various NHS Providers 
 
 

 
Referral pathways between Substance 
Misuse Service and Mental Healthcare 
providers from Primary Care.  Collaboration 
with BHFT on treatment of people with 
mental health needs. 
 

 
Children’s Public Health 

 
PH 
CYP&L 
BHFT 
 

 
School nursing and other services for 
children 5-19 already in place.  The 
commissioning of services for ages 0-5 
(Health Visiting, Family Nurse Partnership) 
to transfer to Public Health from NHS 
England in October 2015. 
 

 
NHS Health Checks 

 
PH 
BA CCG 
Primary Care 
 

 
Primary Care commissioned by PH to 
provide health check services.  BA CCG 
support promotion of the service. 
 

 
Health Protection (including 
Screening & Immunisation) 

 
PH 
Primary Care 
NHS E 
ASC 
PHE 
 

 
Key programmes include cancer screening, 
children’s vaccinations (eg: MMR) and flu 
immunisations.  Screening and 
Immunisation Programmes are 
commissioned by NHS E and provided 
mostly within primary care.  Public Health 
work to maximise uptake of these 
programmes and work with PHE to provide 
local on-call health protection cover 
(dealing with outbreaks and other health 
threatening incidents). 
 

 
Core Offer of Commissioning Support 

 
PH 
BA CCG 

 
JSNA, Health Needs Assessments, CCG & UA 
Profiles, Specific Analyses on Request, Input 
of service design (eg: extended hours 
services in primary care) 
 

 
Public Health Advice Service to 
Primary Care 

 
PH 
PC 

 
Work at an individual practice level by PH 
team to advise Primary Care teams on PH 



Unrestricted 
 

 issues, including sexual health, health 
checks, referral pathways and health 
protection programmes such as screening 
and immunisations 
 

 
Information Sharing 

 
ASC 
BA CCG 
 

 

Work to expand the Council's software 
systems to enable the use of an individual's 
NHS Number as a unique identifier. The use 
of the NHS Number will apply to 
documents/letters/outputs meant for 
individuals receiving care. These 
communications will bear the NHS Number 
as the key identifier for that person along 
with consistent demographic details (e.g. 
names and address). 
 

 
 
 



Unrestricted 
 

Appendix B:   
 

Framework for the Evaluation of Joint Working  
on Health & Social Care in Bracknell Forest 
 
Information & Advice: 
Good quality information on a condition, issue or set of related services is provided in a range of 
formats.  All relevant agencies contribute to keeping information up to date with one agency 
taking responsibility for the presentation and maintenance of that information.  People wanting 
information on a condition, issue or service do not need to go to numerous places or websites to 
get a comprehensive picture. 
 

Excellent Good Average Poor Very Poor 

 
Notes: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Service Accessibility 
It is clear to people how to access services, with clear information on eligibility, opening times, and 
venues (including the availability of in home services). Where possible there will be a range of ways 
to access services with a common point of assessment which will address physical, psychological 
and social needs together.  Waiting times are short, especially prior to assessment.   
 

Excellent Good Average Poor Very Poor 

 
Notes: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Unrestricted 
 

 

Referral between Services 
If referrals to other services are required then good communication is maintained with those being 
referred on the progress of the referral.  People know who to call if a referral takes longer than 
expected and are not passed between services when attempting to get information.   
 

Excellent Good Average Poor Very Poor 

 
Notes: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Information Sharing  
People using services only have to tell their ‘story’ once.  Shared records are available that 
promote good communication but maintain appropriate levels of confidentiality.    
 

Excellent Good Average Poor Very Poor 

 
Notes: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Unrestricted 
 

Coordination & Communication 
People using services are seen by as few different people as possible.  Where available, care is 
coordinated by one person who becomes a familiar and trusted ‘face’ of the joined up services.  
People using services understand the role of each professional they have contact with. 
 

Excellent Good Average Poor Very Poor 

 
Notes: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Consistency 
People using services are never presented with contradictory information or advice by different 
professionals.  Providers of services take responsibility for any inconsistencies when they arise and 
do not leave those using services to make sense of contradictory information.  Where possible, the 
same people provide care throughout a person’s period of contact with services. 
 

Excellent Good Average Poor Very Poor 

 
Notes: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



TO: HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
3 SEPTEMBER 2015 

  
 

HEALTHWATCH BRACKNELL FOREST ANNUALREPORT 
Healthwatch Bracknell Forest 

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 

1.1 To provide the Board with an opportunity to note the work of Healthwatch Bracknell 
Forest during the past year. 

2 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 That the Health and Wellbeing Board note the contents of the Healthwatch 
Bracknell Forest Annual Report 

3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIO 

3.1 To provide the Health and Wellbeing Board with an opportunity to comment on the 
work of Healthwatch Bracknell Forest  

4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

4.1 None applicable 

5 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

5.1 Attached as an annex to this report is the second annual report from 
Healthwatch Bracknell Forest.  2014/15 was a challenging year for Healthwatch 
Bracknell Forest with a number of national and local changes in health and social 
care.  

 
5.2 Healthwatch Bracknell Forest is a consortium of local community and voluntary 

organisations with the principal aims of: 
 

 Giving local people a voice in the design, commissioning, evaluating and 
improvement of local health and social care services 

 Providing information so that local people can make informed choices about 
health and social care services  

 Signposting local people to other organisations that can help them, 
including those that will support them to make a complaint about health 
and social care services or to help them access support and services.  

 
5.3 Healthwatch Bracknell Forest’s approach to their work has been to try and 

influence service design before implementation leading to more patient friendly 
services.  This proactive and collaborative approach has also been adopted with 
NHS trusts and other providers when dealing with issues and concerns raised by the 
public which means we are less likely to use the organisation’s statutory powers 
which reduces tensions which can arise from formal visits.  

 



5.3 During 2014/15 Healthwatch Bracknell Forest formed a number of positive 
relationships with key management staff within Frimley Health NHS Foundation 
Trust, who now run not only Frimley Park but also Wexham Park and Heatherwood 
Hospitals following the acquisition in October 2014.  

6 ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS 

Borough Solicitor 

6.1 Not applicable 

Borough Treasurer 

6.2 Not applicable 

Equalities Impact Assessment 

6.3 Not applicable 

Strategic Risk Management Issues  

6.4 Not applicable 

7 CONSULTATION 

 Principal Groups Consulted 

7.1 Not applicable 

 Method of Consultation 

7.2 Not applicable 

 Representations Received 

7.3 Not applicable 

Background Papers 
None 
 
Contact for further information 
Mark Sanders, Operational Lead, Healthwatch Bracknell Forest  
mark@healthwatchbracknellforest.co.uk 



    1 

 

 

2014/2015 

 

Annual 
Report 

 

 

 

Healthwatch Bracknell 
Forest 



    2 

 



 

    3 

Contents 

 

Note from the Operational Lead .................................................................... 4 

About Healthwatch Bracknell Forest............................................................... 5 

Engaging with people who use health and social care services ............................... 6 

Understanding people’s experiences ............................................................... 6 

Enter & View ........................................................................................... 8 

Providing information and signposting for people who use health and social care 

services .................................................................................................. 9 

Influencing decision makers with evidence from local people ............................ 111 

Producing reports and recommendations to effect change ................................... 11 

Putting local people at the heart of improving services ..................................... 111 

Working with others to improve local services ................................................ 122 

Our plans for 2015/16 ............................................. Error! Bookmark not defined.5 

Our governance and decision-making ............................................................. 16 

Our board ........................................................................................... 166 

How we involve lay people and volunteers .................................................... 166 

Financial information .............................................................................. 177 

Contact us ........................................................................................... 1818 

 



 

    4 

Notes from the Operational Lead 

Mark Sanders, Operational Lead 

Welcome to the second annual report 

from Healthwatch Bracknell Forest. 

2014/15 has been a challenging year for 

Healthwatch Bracknell Forest with a 

number of national and local changes in 

health and social care. 

The approach of Healthwatch Bracknell 

Forest has been to try and influence 

service design before implementation 

leading to more patient friendly services. 

We also take this proactive and 

collaborative approach with NHS trusts 

and other providers when dealing with 

issues and concerns raised by the public 

which means we are less likely to use our 

statutory powers which reduces tensions 

which can arise from formal visits. 

We have formed some very positive 

relationships with key management staff 

within Frimley Health NHS Foundation 

Trust, who now run not only Frimley Park 

Hospital, but also Wexham Park and 

Heatherwood Hospitals following the 

acquisition in October 2014. During the 

year we have introduced a monthly 

meeting with the patient and public 

experience team which allows us to share 

the public’s feedback about services 

leading to small but significant changes 

across all sites. 

As the Operational Lead it is my 

responsibility to represent the patients 

and public on the Health and Wellbeing 

Board and other strategic decision making 

bodies. Having this consistent 

representation ensures no gaps in 

information or delays in reporting urgent 

issues to the management board and the 

wider public. Having the resource of local 

feedback and the knowledge and 

experiences of the consortium members to 

refer to is invaluable to me to fulfil this 

function. 

Although our community and engagement 

strategy has led to a significant increase in 

our website, social media and digital 

communications, the importance of face-

to-face community engagement cannot be 

over emphasised. 

Volunteers are essential to the delivery of 

local Healthwatch. Along with some of our 

fellow network members, we found 

recruitment challenging. Direct access to 

the national Do-It website, facilitated by 

Healthwatch England after we raised the 

issue, along with our increased community 

presence has led to an increase in the 

number of volunteers recruited in the last 

year. 

During 2015/16 we will continue to 

collaborate as well as maintaining an 

independent stance on what people want 

in the ever changing world of health and 

social care. 

 

 



 

    5 

About Healthwatch Bracknell Forest 

We are here to make health and 

social care better for ordinary 

people. We believe that the best way 

to do this is by designing local 

services around their needs and 

experiences.  

Everything we say and do is informed by 

our connections to local people and our 

expertise is grounded in their experience. 

We are the only body looking solely at 

people’s experience across all health and 

social care. 

We are uniquely placed as a network, with 

a local Healthwatch in every local 

authority area in England.  

As a statutory watchdog our role is to 

ensure that local health and social care 

services, and the local decision makers, 

put the experiences of people at the heart 

of their care. 

Our Aims  

 To give local people a voice in the 

design, commissioning, evaluating 

and improvement of local health 

and social care services 

 To provide information so that 

local people can make informed 

choices about health and social 

care services 

 To signpost local people to other 

organisations that can help them, 

including those that will support 

them to make a complaint about 

health and social care services or 

to help them access support and 

services. 

 

The organisations that make up the consortium 

 

 

How we operate 

Healthwatch Bracknell Forest is a 

consortium of local community and 

voluntary organisations whose 

representatives, alongside public 

members, form a management board. 

The Ark Trust Ltd is the lead consortium 

organisation and also hosts Healthwatch 

Bracknell Forest. 

The consortium has successfully had their 

contract to provide Healthwatch extended 

by a further year until 2016. 

Healthwatch Bracknell Forest has 3 

permanent staff positions.  

 

 



 

    6 

Engaging with people who use 
health and social care services  

Understanding people’s 

experiences  

Engagement with the public is the most 

significant element of our work; without it 

we cannot truly represent the patient and 

public voice.  

Healthwatch Bracknell Forest has 

successfully implemented a balanced 

communications and engagement strategy 

- raising awareness of local Healthwatch, 

local services and local health and social 

care issues. Website and digital 

communications have increased four-fold 

over the last year which has freed up the 

local team to do a lot more community 

engagement events and talk to people 

face-to-face. 

This steady increase in the number of 

people engaging with the service has 

allowed us to gather, over time, a clearer 

picture of the public’s experiences. 

In 2014/2015 we received 2125 

comments from individuals about local 

health and social care services 

In addition to these pieces of feedback 

from the public we are able to understand 

people’s experiences by: 

 Monthly feedback from consortium 

members 

 Attending events in the community 

 Supporting and working with the 

Patient Assembly 

 Healthwatch Voices; events for the 

local community and voluntary 

sector 

 Fortnightly bulletins 

 Social media discussions 

 On-line polls 

 Attending patient involvement 

groups (hospital trusts), community 

partnership forums (CCGs) and 

partnership boards (local authority) 

 

The Department of Health and 

Healthwatch England have identified 

groups of people that local Healthwatch 

must seek to engage with. 

Young people (under 21) and older people 

(over 65). 

Three of the consortium organisations 

work with children and families including 

young carers. They are able to provide us 

with monthly feedback on the key issues 

they are facing. 

During the multi-agency delivery of self-

care week initial contacts were made with 

the local college. Healthwatch staff have 

been able to present to students and get 

them involved with promoting 

Healthwatch Bracknell Forest and 

collecting feedback on services from their 

peers. 

In January 2015, Bracknell and Ascot           

Clinical Commissioning Group entered into 

a contract with Healthwatch Bracknell 

Forest to support and promote the 

engagement of 14-21 year olds. 



 

    7 

Bracknell & Wokingham College Students 

promoting Healthwatch during Rag Week 

 

Healthwatch Bracknell Forest is a member 

of the local dementia action alliance, 

attends the older people forum and has 

visited community groups such as the local 

chapter of the National Pensioners 

Convention. We also had a stand at Ascot 

Retirement Fair which attracted over 2000 

visitors. 

The consortium is actively looking to 

recruit a local group that represents older 

people. 

People volunteering or working in 

Bracknell Forest but who may not live in 

the area 

 

Community events such as self-care week 

held in locations such as the shopping 

centre promoted engagement with the 

area’s working population.  

Healthwatch Voices engages with those 

who work for and volunteer for local 

community and voluntary sector 

organisations. 

We will be attending the Business in the 

Community events in 2015/2016. 

Disadvantaged people and those believed 

to be vulnerable 

The groups that make up the consortium 

work with local people who have 

disabilities or long-term conditions and 

their carers. They are able to provide us 

with monthly feedback on the key issues 

they are facing. 

The Healthwatch Bracknell Forest website 

has accessibility functions and information 

can be provided in alternative formats 

including easy read. 

Healthwatch Bracknell Forest is able to 

deliver accessible presentations, briefings 

and engagement events utilising the 

experience of consortium members as well 

as its own staff and volunteers. 

 

“Bracknell and Ascot Clinical Commissioning Group (BACCG) have worked closely with 

Healthwatch Bracknell Forest during the year and value the contribution they have made. 

They have particularly supported the engagement of local patients and public through 

their facilitation of the Patient Assembly, participation in Self Care week and other local 

activities, supporting recruitment of HealthMakers, participation in developing future 

plans for primary care and their participation in the Community Partnership Forum. Their 

proactive and constructive approach to raising issues relating to the quality of local 

services has also been welcome and helps to ensure improving patient experience is a top 

priority across the local NHS.” 

Ally Green, Associate Director of Communications and Engagement, BACCG 



 

    8 

People who are seldom heard 

In addition to those groups already 

identified, Healthwatch Bracknell Forest 

wants to engage with others who are 

seldom heard. These include people of 

disadvantaged socio-economic status, 

ethnic minority groups, patients in our 

local high-security hospital and members 

of the community who currently do not 

have regular contact with health and 

social care services; particularly men.  

The area of Bracknell Forest is not 

considered, by national standards, to be 

an area of deprivation however it has 

identified pockets such as Great Hollands. 

This is also an area that has a high level of 

multiple occupancy housing which puts 

additional strain on local health and social 

care resources. 

Healthwatch Bracknell Forest has 

continued its community engagement 

work in the area and developed its 

relationship with key members of the 

community such as local councillors. 

Healthwatch has met with the local 

Citizen’s Advice Bureau to promote sign-

posting between the two organisations. 

Historically, Bracknell Forest has not had a 

large ethnic minority population but 

recent statistics suggest this is changing. 

Healthwatch Bracknell Forest has 

promoted self-care week and health 

checks to a local Thai community group 

and encouraged engagement with local 

Healthwatch. 

People who do not have regular contact 

with health and social care services 

continue to be a challenge to engage. We 

have run targeted social media campaigns 

and attended community events that do 

not have a health and social care focus – 

such as residents associations and school 

fetes. 

 

Enter & View  

Enter and View powers can be used as a 

corrective action to sort out problems but 

the emphasis for Healthwatch Bracknell 

Forest during 2014/2015 is on promoting 

Enter and View as a way of engaging with 

providers to explore issues collaboratively 

before they become problems; as part of 

an ongoing conversation and process of 

continuous improvement. 

This preventative approach to Enter and 

View sits alongside our approach and 

engagement with providers detailed later 

in the report. 

In addition to Healthwatch staff, 17 

people have been/are in the process of 

training to become Enter & View reps at 

the end of the year 2014/15. Training is 

delivered in a variety of ways – to suit all 

accessibility needs. 

7 Enter and View visits were conducted 

during the year. Of these 5 were “invited” 

by providers. In addition the team has 

assisted with PLACE (Patient Led 

Assessment of the Care Environment) 

assessments.  

The outcomes from these visits include: 

 Consistent and safer working 

practices on wards where obtaining 

patient consent was difficult; 

including use of appropriate 

restraint and the importance of 

documentation  

 Improved hospital food options for 

people after abdominal surgery 

 Provision of free water in accident 

and emergency department 

 Cleaner children’s accident and 

emergency environment 

 Clearer identification of staff 

through ID badges and uniform 

 Improved external areas in high-

secure hospital 



 

    9 

Providing information and 
signposting for people who use 
health and social care services  

Helping people get what they 

need from local health and social 

care services  

We provide people with information about 

local services and help them to navigate 

the health and social care system by: 

Information 

 Fortnightly bulletins 

 Publish news stories on our website 

and social media channels 

 A calendar of health and social 

events available on the website 

 Disseminate time sensitive alerts 

through all channels and to all 

contacts 

 Agenda items at community 

meetings and the Patient Assembly 

“Healthwatch Bracknell Forest 

has been a key partner in 

promoting the monthly Joint 

Prevention and Self-Care 

Board’s health and social care 

campaigns. Members of 

Healthwatch have also 

contributed a significant amount 

of time and effort in organising, 

promoting and running Self-Care 

Week 2014.” 

Matthew Clift, Self-Care Project 
Manager 

Signposting 

In addition to the links to NHS Choices, 

Bracknell Forest social care information, 

independent advocacy, localised self-help 

(CCG website) and other relevant services 

on our website, the Healthwatch team are 

able to draw upon the resources available 

locally to provide signposting and 

guidance. People can contact us by email, 

telephone or drop in to the office. Many of 

our consortium organisations have staff 

and volunteers that work with families and 

individuals and are also able to provide 

this information. 

202 individuals have been provided 

with signposting, advice and guidance 

No two (or three!) requests for signposting 

are the same: 

Case 1 

A gentleman contacted us by telephone. 

His wife had been discharged from 

hospital and the commode he had been 

supplied with had broken and he was 

unsure how to get this replaced as he was 

not sure who had arranged it. 

A few telephone calls established that it 

was the OT department of Farnham 

Hospital who had provided the equipment 

and a replacement was arranged. 

Feedback on our service - “Doing a great 

job!” 



  

    10 

Case 2 

Contact was made with Healthwatch 

through one of the consortium 

organisations. A severely disabled lady 

was seeking advice about her personal 

budget from social care. She had specific 

support needs to form and maintain an 

intimate relationship but did not want this 

to be discussed with or provided by her 

existing support workers. 

The Healthwatch team researched the 

issues raised and discovered there was no 

specific universal guidance available. This 

led to an information request being 

generated to the local adult social care 

team. This response and details of a 

specialist advocacy service were given to 

the lady to help inform her of her options. 

Case 3 

Healthwatch were contacted by a patient 

who could not find how to make a 

complaint on their GP’s website. They 

declined offers of advocacy signposting. 

The Practice Manager was contacted and, 

with the patient’s consent, contact details 

were given. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

“The Healthwatch team has 

taken up several requests for 

me on behalf of local residents 

and always returned very useful 

information to support their 

concerns. It is good to have a 

resource that can delve into 

health issues and that suggests 

solutions and signposts further 

support.” 

Cllr Mary Temperton, Great Hollands 
North 

Advocacy 

When providing advice and guidance we 

will also, where relevant, signpost people 

to independent advocacy. The two main 

local providers, SEAP (who provide NHS 

complaint advocacy) and Just Advocacy 

(who provide their service to local people 

in receipt of social care services) also sit 

on the consortium.  

 



 

    11 

 

Influencing decision makers with 
evidence from local people  

Producing reports and 

recommendations to effect change  

In addition to the outcomes achieved from 

reports and recommendations made 

following Enter and View visits (Page 9) 

Healthwatch Bracknell Forest issued a 

report following the analysis of feedback 

received on local services collected during 

Self-Care Week (November 2014) 

Although no recommendations were made 

in the report, the evidence has been used 

to support Healthwatch Bracknell Forest’s 

work - particularly with access to out-

patients, GPs and promotion of alternative 

choices to the Accident and Emergency 

department. 

Due to the approach that Healthwatch 

Bracknell Forest has taken and its 

collaborative work with commissioners 

and providers of health and social care 

services, the voice of the patients, service 

users and the public is included in the 

process of continuous improvement. The 

feedback we receive is communicated 

directly to commissioners and providers at 

different meetings, providing anecdotal 

evidence to support data such as quality 

statistics.  

This approach does mean that much of our 

work is not visible to the wider community 

and one of our tasks for 2015/2016 is to 

communicate to the community how their 

feedback has been utilised and the 

positive outcomes it has made. 

“Mark and his team are always 

there to remind us of what the 

patients and public require of 

us, his comments are valued by 

Bracknell & Ascot Clinical 

Commissioning Group (BACCG). 

They are both challenging and 

supportive.”  

Jennie Ford, Practice Manager and 
BACCG Board Member 

Putting local people at the heart 

of improving services  

The operational lead represents patients 

and public at a strategic level, including 

on the Health and Wellbeing Board. This 

approach to representation by an 

individual with extensive knowledge of the 

local health and social care landscape 

ensures consistency of approach and 

knowledge between the inter-linking 

boards, forums and committees and high 

quality information and intelligence 

sharing between the public, the 

commissioners and the Healthwatch 

Bracknell Forest management board. 

This does not mean that local people are 

excluded from direct representation. 

Healthwatch Bracknell Forest are able to 

mobilise their resources and contact over 

750 people on its database to ask for 

consultation and feedback. This can also 

be used to seek patient representation on 



  

    12 

both local and national commissioning and 

monitoring panels.  

Volunteer community champions are also 

used to seek input into these processes. 

“Healthwatch in Bracknell 

Forest are an effective conduit 

for our residents’ opinions, 

concerns and ideas. As such, 

they have helped us improve 

quality and deliver better 

outcomes.” 

Dr Lisa McNally, Consultant in Public 
Health, Member of the Health and 
Wellbeing Board 

Working with others to improve 

local services  

CQC 

We have escalated two issues to the 

national health and social care regulator; 

the CQC 

 Serious concerns with patient care 

on a specific ward at an acute trust 

 Concerns about patient re-

registration at dentists 

We did not recommend that the CQC 

conduct any special reviews (themed 

investigations) or investigations 

(responsive inspections) however they did 

follow up the concerns about patient re-

registration at dentists and confirmed that 

patients were actually being asked to sign 

consent for treatment forms rather than 

re-registration forms and issued a 

reminder to all local dentists to explain to 

patients the reasons for the forms and the 

procedures. 

Due to the internal re-structuring of the 

CQC we have not been able to meet or 

make contact with all local teams 

 

Healthwatch England 

We share intelligence with Healthwatch 

England through regular contact with our 

regional Development Officer. We also 

share reports on Yammer. We have not 

used the formal escalation policy and 

procedures. 

Bracknell Forest Overview & Scrutiny 

Panel 

Healthwatch Bracknell Forest attends the 

Health Overview and Scrutiny Panel as a 

formal observer which means we are 

invited to speak. Together we both raised 

concerns about the reception area of the 

local Urgent Care Centre and continue to 

monitor the situation. 

We need to develop this relationship in 

2015/2016 and also become involved in 

the Adult Social Care & Housing Overview 

& Scrutiny Panel and Children, Young 

People & Learning Overview and Scrutiny 

Panel. 

“Bracknell Forest Council’s 

Health Overview and Scrutiny 

Panel values the work of 

Healthwatch Bracknell Forest, 

and having their representative 

join us at each of our Panel 

meetings has been helpful. 

Going forward, the Panel sees 

its relationship growing with 

Healthwatch, as we aim to build 

our understanding of the service 

users’ perspective and 

therefore enhance our 

representation of their 

interests.” 

Richard Beaumont, Head of 
Overview & Scrutiny, Bracknell 
Forest Council 



  

    13 

Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) 

Healthwatch Bracknell Forest attends the 

monthly Bracknell and Ascot GP council as 

representatives of the public and we 

encourage the wider community to 

attend. From February 2015 Patient and 

Public Involvement is a regular agenda 

item (we alternate this slot with the CCG 

lay member of the governing body) 

East Berks CCG Quality Committee meets 

monthly. This is a key and informative 

meeting where intelligence is 

disseminated from all parties, discussed 

and the impact of national policies on 

local implementation. 

 

 “Healthwatch Bracknell Forest 

have been an active member of 

the CCG Quality Committee 

during the last year and have 

made an invaluable 

contributions to the important 

areas discussed on patient 

safety, quality of care and 

patient experience. They have 

also brought a different 

perspective to the discussions. 

The CCG applauds all the 

valuable work that Healthwatch 

do and at each committee 

meeting Healthwatch are able 

to share the work they have 

been doing. They also share any 

themes or trends with the CCG 

from concerns raised to them.”   

Jo Greengrass, Deputy Director of 
Nursing – Quality and Safety, Slough 
CCG, Bracknell & Ascot CCG and 
Windsor, Ascot & Maidenhead CCG 

Bracknell and Ascot CCG have re-

commissioned Healthwatch to provide 

independent support and facilitation of 

the Patient Assembly and development of 

the Patient Participation Groups that 

make up its membership. 

GP Surgeries 

In addition to the support given to the 

development of Patient Participation 

Groups and following the first CQC 

inspection reports on local GP surgeries, 

an offer has been made to all local 

practice managers to assist with 

improvement of patient experience. 

Non-clinical issues at GP Surgeries - such 

as access and staff attitude - continue to 

be the most frequent concern fed back to 

us. 

“A necessary and efficient 

service that is paramount for 

the safety of our patients in an 

ever changing National Health 

Service. Bracknell Healthwatch 

has been very successful in 

coordinating the Patient 

Assembly that ensures the 

patient voice is heard locally 

and nationally.” 

Roland Cundy, Business Manager, 
Binfield Surgery 

Frimley Health NHS Foundation Trust 

In addition to our reports and 

recommendations made through Enter and 

View, we engage with the trust at the 

quarterly Patient Involvement Group. 

Following the acquisition of Heatherwood 

and Wexham Park Hospitals by Frimley 

Park, Healthwatch Bracknell Forest also 

co-ordinates and collates intelligence and 

issues from 7 other local Healthwatch and 



  

    14 

meets monthly with the Head of Patient 

Involvement. 

“Healthwatch Bracknell Forest 

has actively engaged with 

Frimley Health NHS Foundation 

Trust. They make a positive and 

invaluable contribution to 

helping us improve patient 

experience together in 

partnership with the local 

population.” 

Claire Marshall, Head of Patient 
Involvement, Frimley Health NHS 
Foundation Trust 

Bracknell Social Care Teams 

The consortium groups represent their 

members and Healthwatch Bracknell 

Forest on relevant boards and forums such 

as the Learning Disability Partnership 

Board. (Wokingham, Bracknell and District 

Mencap) 

Multi-agency strategic groups 

Healthwatch Bracknell Forest is an active 

member of groups such as Better Futures 

for All, Collaboration for Improvement, 

Better Care Fund and the Primary Care 

Steering Group. These meetings allow us 

to feed back the concerns of patients and 

the public and ensure these influence 

strategy and the commissioning of 

services. On average 35-40 such meetings 

are attended a quarter. 

West London Mental Health NHS Trust 

Healthwatch Bracknell Forest has worked 

with trust staff and patients to complete 

PLACE assessments in areas that have 

restricted patient movement due to 

security reasons. Links have been 

developed with the Independent Mental 

Health Advocacy Service, service leaflets 

are now available in visitor areas of 

Broadmoor Hospital and we have attended 

a carers forum. 

Healthwatch Bracknell Forest continues to 

work towards providing a full accessible 

service to the patients. 

Quality Accounts 

Healthwatch Bracknell Forest were given 

the opportunity to have oversight and 

comment before publication on the 

Quality Accounts from: 

 Berkshire Healthcare NHS 

Foundation Trust 

 Frimley Health NHS Foundation 

Trust 

 Royal Berkshire NHS Foundation 

Trust 

 South Central Ambulance NHS 

Foundation Trust 

 West London Mental Health NHS 

Trust 

The responses we provided to these 

Quality Accounts were based on the 

feedback and intelligence on services 

gathered from the public during the year. 

Responses to information requests 

All providers and commissioners that were 

asked for information responded. 

Healthwatch Bracknell Forest Bugs 

 



 

    15 

Our plans for 2015/16

Opportunities and challenges for 

the future  

Although these are the current priorities 

for the next year, the board recognises 

that the health and social care landscape 

is ever-changing, so priorities may change 

in response to issues and consumer voice.  

 To continue to raise awareness of 

Healthwatch Bracknell Forest. 

To continue to evaluate, develop 

and implement the communication 

and engagement strategy. 

 Improve access to Primary Care 

Services.  

To work with stakeholders on 

developing extended hours that 

meet patients’ needs and that all 

services are designed, 

commissioned and improved with 

the involvement of the local 

community.  

 Improve access to local out-

patient appointments and clinics. 

To work with acute trusts to 

deliver appointments in local 

health facilities of the patients’ 

choice and at times that suit the 

patient. 

 To increase representation from 

older people in Healthwatch 

Bracknell Forest management 

board and decision making 

processes. 

To identify a local older peoples 

community and voluntary group to 

join the consortium. 

 

 To increase the number of young 

people actively engaged with 

Healthwatch Bracknell Forest and 

other health and social care 

commissioners and providers. 

To replicate engagement work 

carried out in 2014/15 with the 

local college in local secondary 

schools and to develop a youth 

patient forum. 

 To engage directly and regularly 

with the patients of Broadmoor 

Hospital. 

To develop a protocol of working 

without compromising patient care 

or security. 

 Raising the profile of Healthwatch 

Bracknell Forest with social care 

staff. 

Although consortium 

representatives are actively 

engaged with partnership boards 

and social care managers they are 

often unaware of their dual role; 

representing Healthwatch 

Bracknell Forest as well as their 

own group and membership. 

 To increase our activity within 

social care settings. 

To change public perception that 

Healthwatch is not just about 

health concerns! 

 

 

 

 

 



 

    16 

Our governance and decision-
making  

Our board 

Representatives from the organisations 

that make up the consortium sit on the 

management board. In April 2014 they 

were joined by two members of the public 

selected through a democratic election 

process. In April 2015 three public 

representatives will be elected at the 

annual public meeting. The two existing 

members have expressed their wish to 

stand again.    

The Ark Trust Ltd is the charitable 

company (Reg. Charity No. 1098204) who 

gathered the consortium and powered the 

bid to the local authority. They are the 

organisation who holds the legal contract 

with Bracknell Forest Council to deliver 

Healthwatch Bracknell Forest and 

ultimately, the legal compliance of the 

contract lies with the directors of The Ark 

Trust Ltd. 

All activity within the scope of the 

contract is governed by the management 

board. Healthwatch Bracknell Forest has 

its own policies and procedures which can 

be viewed on the website. 

http://www.healthwatchbracknellforest.co.uk
/policies-and-procedures 

Management board meetings are held 
monthly and are open to members of the 
public to attend (excluding confidential 
agenda items) and all minutes are 
published on the Healthwatch Bracknell 
Forest website. Staff from Healthwatch 
Bracknell Forest also attend to report and 
advise but do not have a vote in decision 
making. The lay member for Patient and 
Public Involvement for the Bracknell and 

Ascot Clinical Commissioning Group is also 
invited as a contributor and observer. 

An annual public meeting is held in a large 
community venue at the start of each 
financial year to give an overview of the 
previous year’s activity, seek consultation 
on the forward work programme and to 
elect public representatives to sit on the 
management board. 

How we involve lay people and 

volunteers in governance and 

decision making 

 The Ark Trust Ltd has 10 Directors 

who are all volunteers 

 There are 2/3 public 

representatives on the 

management board who are 

volunteers 

 2 of the consortium organisations 

have volunteer representatives on 

the management board 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

    17 

Financial information  

 

INCOME £ 

Funding received from local authority to deliver local 

Healthwatch statutory activities 

103340 

Additional income  19960 

Total income 123300 

  

EXPENDITURE  

Office costs (includes rent, overheads, consumables) 9195 

Staffing costs (incudes consultancy and payments to 

consortium organisations for staff resource) 

92465 

Direct delivery costs (includes cost of CRM, volunteer 

expenses, venue hire, marketing materials) 

17272 

Total expenditure 118932 

Balance brought forward 4368 

 



 

    18 

Contact us  

Get in touch 

Address:   Healthwatch Bracknell Forest 

   The Space 

   Units 20/21 Market Street 

   Bracknell 

   Berkshire 

   RG12 1JG 

 

Phone number: 01344 266911 

Email:   enquiries@healthwatchbracknellforest.co.uk 

Website URL:  www.healthwatchbracknellforest.co.uk 

Facebook:  www.facebook.com/healthwatchbf 

Twitter:  @healthwatchBF 

 

 

 

We will be making this annual report publicly available by 30th June 2015 by publishing it 

on our website and circulating it to Healthwatch England, CQC, NHS England, Clinical 

Commissioning Group/s, Overview and Scrutiny Committee/s, and our local authority.  

We confirm that we are using the Healthwatch Trademark (which covers the logo and 

Healthwatch brand) when undertaking work on our statutory activities as covered by the 

licence agreement. 

If you require this report in an alternative format please contact us at the address above.  

 

© Copyright Healthwatch Bracknell Forest 2015 



 

 

 





 

  

HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD: FORWARD PLAN 2015/16 
 

(Scheduling of agenda items are subject to change) 
 
 
Next meeting of the Board: 10 December  
 

Item Decision Responsibility 

CAHMS Transformation 
Update 

Update Mary Purnell 

 




	Agenda
	4 Minutes from Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	10 Joint Working Arrangements: NHS and Local Authority
	11 Healthwatch Bracknell Forest Annual Report
	Healthwatch Bracknell Forest Annual Report 2014-2015

	12 Forward Plan

